
 

SCFPD Agenda 01/18/2024 - Page 1 

 

                                                  Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
 3324 Topeka Street 

 Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 Fax: (209) 869-7475 

Email: admin@scfpd.us 
Www.scfpd.us 

 
 

Jonathan Goulding 
President 
BOS District 2 

Brandon Rivers 
Vice President 
Waterford 

Greg Bernardi 
Director 
BOS District 1 

Charles E. Neal 
Director 
Riverbank 

Steven Stanfield 
Director 
BOS District 1 
 

AGENDA  

Thursday, January 18, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. 
 REGULAR AND CLOSED SESSION MEETING OF THE  

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Station 26 Meeting Room, 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, CA 

(THE AGENDA PACKET IS POSTED AT EACH SCFPD LOCATION AND AT WWW.SCFPD.US)   

 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

President Goulding 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Goulding 

3. INVOCATION 

 

Pastor Charles E. Neal with Riverbank Assembly of God Church   

 

4. ROLL CALL 

Board President:  Goulding 

Board Vice President: Rivers 

Director:   Bernardi 

Director:   Neal 

Director:   Stanfield 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – at this time, a Board Member may pull an item from the agenda 

 

 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – Declaration by Board of Director members who 

may have a conflict of Interest on any scheduled agenda item is to declare their conflict at this time. 

 

 

7. PRESENTATION/ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

mailto:admin@scfpd.us
http://www.scfpd.us/
http://www.scfpd.us/


 

SCFPD Agenda 01/18/2024 - Page 2 

 

Item 7.A:  Employee Recognition of Years of Service 

 

Item 7.B:  New Hires/Promotions/Retiree Announcements 

 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS- The Board of Directors welcomes participation in Board meetings.  Matters 

under the jurisdiction of the Board that are not posted on the agenda may be addressed by the public.  

California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posed agenda, unless 

the Board determines that it is an emergency or other situation specified in Government Code Section 

54954.2. Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes per individual.  Please make your comments 

directly to SCFPD Board President.  Comments will be accepted via Teleconference. 

 

ACTION CALENDAR 
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS- All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be 

enacted upon by one motion unless otherwise requested by an individual Board Member or public for 

special consideration.  

 

Item 9.A: Minutes of the December 21, 2023, Board of Directors Regular Meeting. 

 

 Recommendation:  Approve Minutes of December 21, 2023, by 

Consent Action. 

 

Item 9.B: Acceptance of Warrants (Check Register) – December 2023 

 

   Recommendation:  Accept by Consent Action 

 

Item 9.C:  Acceptance of Financial Reports – December 2023 

 

   Recommendation:  Accept by Consent Action  

 

10. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 

No Discussion Items scheduled. 

 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

No Public Hearing Items scheduled. 

 

12. ACTION ITEMS  

 

Item 12.A: Consideration to Approve Resolution 2024-01, Authorizing the 

Appointment of Jessica Sousa to fill the role as Clerk of the Board.  

   Recommendation:  Roll Call Vote, Approve Resolution 2024-01. 

Item 12.B: Nomination and Election of 2024 Board Officers: President, Vice 

President, District Treasurer and Clerk of the Board.    



 

SCFPD Agenda 01/18/2024 - Page 3 

 

 Recommendation:  Take action to nominate, elect, and vote a 

member of the Board Officers to the positions of: President, Vice 

President, and reconfirm the previous appointment of Brittney Withrow, 

Administrative Assistant III, to the position of District Treasurer per prior 

resolution No. 22-03, and confirm the appointment of Jessica Sousa, 

Administrative Assistant III, Clerk of the Board, per resolution No. 2024-

01, for the 2024 calendar year.   

Item 12.C: Nomination and Election of 2024 Committee Members and District 

Representatives.  

 Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Board take action to 

nominate, elect, and vote for all board committee assignments in 

accordance with District Board Policy 2 – Board Organization and 

Structure, and select District Representatives in accordance with District 

Board Policy 3.3.1.   

Item 12.D: Consideration to Approve the Agreement between Jocelyn E. Roland, 

Ph.D., ABPP Psychologist, hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”, and 

the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District hereinafter referred to 

as the, “Agency”.  

 Recommendation:  The Board Approve the Agreement between 

Jocelyn E. Roland, Ph.D., ABPP Psychologist and Stanislaus 

Consolidated Fire Protection District.   

Item 12.E: Discussion of and Consideration to Approve Mid-Year Budget Revisions.  

 Recommendation:  The Board Approve the Mid-Year Budget 

Revisions.  

Item 12.F: Discussion of and Consideration to Approve Deputy Chief Bray’s 

Contract.  

 Recommendation:  The Board Approve Deputy Chief Bray’s 

Contract.  

 

13. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

1. Correspondence –  

 

No Correspondence items.  

 

2. Written Staff Reports –  

 

Item 13.2.A: Monthly Call Log 

Item 13.2.B:   Training 

Item 13.2.C:   Local 3399 

 

3. Verbal Reports – 

Item 13.3.A:   Fire Chief – Monthly Verbal Board Report  



 

SCFPD Agenda 01/18/2024 - Page 4 

 

Item 13.3.B:    Capital Improvements – (Bernardi/Stanfield) 

Item 13.3.C:   Finance – (Goulding/Neal) 

Item 13.3.D:    Personnel – (Rivers/Stanfield)  

Item 13.3.E:  Fire Advisory with Modesto Fire Dept.- (Goulding/Bernardi) 

 

 

4.  Directors Comments – At this time, Board Members may verbally make individual 

announcements, report briefly on their activities, or request an item be place on a future agenda. 
 

 

14. CLOSED SESSION 

  

Item 14.A:  Conference with Legal Counsel- Anticipated Litigation:   

• Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (1 case) 

 

Item 14.B: Conference with Labor Negotiators: 

• Agency Designated Representative: Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief   

• Employee Organization: Local 3399 

 

15. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 

 

16. CLOSED SESSION REPORT  

 

17. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the SCFPD Board of Directors is February 15, 2024, at 

6:00 p.m. in the Station 26 Meeting Room, located at 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, CA. 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Jessica Sousa, Clerk of the Board of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, do hereby 

declare that the foregoing agenda for the Regular and Closed Session meetings of the Board of Director 

has been posted at the administrative offices, District website of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire 

Protection District at least 72 hours prior to the meeting date and will also be posted at each of the 

District Fire Stations. 

 

Dated: January 15, 2024       Time: 3:00 p.m. 

 

Jessica Sousa /s/ 

Jessica Sousa 

Board Clerk 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

ADA Compliance Statement: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 

assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Board Clerk at (209) 869-7470 or boardclerk@scfpd.us 

Notification 72 hours prior to meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangement to ensure 

accessibility to this meeting.  

mailto:boardclerk@scfpd.us


 

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
 3324 Topeka Street 

 Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 Fax: (209) 869-7475 

Email: admin@scfpd.us 
Www.scfpd.us 

 
 

Jonathan Goulding 
President 
BOS District 2 

Brandon Rivers 
Vice President 
Waterford 

Gregory M. 
Bernardi 
Director 
BOS District 1 

Charles E. Neal 
Director 
Riverbank 

Steven 
Stanfield 
Director 
BOS District 1 
 

 
MINUTES  

Thursday, December 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Station 26 Meeting Room, 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, CA 
(THE AGENDA PACKET IS POSTED AT EACH SCFPD LOCATION AND AT WWW.SCFPD.US)   

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

 

The Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District met this date at 6:00 p.m. in 

the Station 26 Meeting Room with President Goulding presiding and calling the 

meeting to order. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Board President Goulding.  

 

3. INVOCATION 

 

Pastor Charles E. Neal with Riverbank Assembly of God Church gave the 

invocation.  

 

4. ROLL CALL 

 

Board Clerk Called the roll: 

 

Present: 

President:    Goulding 

Vice President:   Rivers  

Director:   Bernardi 

Director:   Neal 

 

 

mailto:admin@scfpd.us
http://www.scfpd.us/
http://www.scfpd.us/


 

 

Absent: 

Director:   Stanfield 

 

Staff Present: 

Fire Chief:   Tietjen 

District Attorney:  Splendorio 

Clerk:    Sousa 

Deputy Chief:   Bray 

   

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – at this time, a Board Member may pull an item from the agenda. 

 
Motion by Director Bernardi, seconded by Director Neal to approve the agenda. 
Passed by roll call vote 4/0/0/1.  

 
AYES:  4 Directors: Goulding, Rivers, Bernardi, Neal  
NOES:  0 Director:  
ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    
ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield 

 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – Declaration by Board of Director members who 

may have a conflict of Interest on any scheduled agenda item is to declare their conflict at this time. 

None was declared. 

7. PRESENTATION/ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

• Chief Tietjen acknowledged the following; 

      Employee Years of Service – November  

• Engineer Jeremy Tankersley – 8 years with SCFPD (22 years) 

• Engineer/ Medic Chaz Bandy – 3 years 

• Engineer/ Medic Corey Wilson – 3 years 

• Firefighter/ Medic Thomas Cornish – 3 years 

• Engineer/ Medic Samuel Warren – 3 years 

Employee Years of Service – December 

• Engineer Dan Lopes - 8 years with SCFPD (23 years)  

• Captain Andrew McDonald – 18 years  

 

• December New Hires 

• Jessica Sousa – Administrative Assistant III and Board Clerk 

 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS - The Board of Directors welcomes participation in Board meetings.  Matters 

under the jurisdiction of the Board that are not posted on the agenda may be addressed by the public.  

California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posed agenda, unless 

the Board determines that it is an emergency or other situation specified in Government Code Section 

54954.2. Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes per individual.  Please make your comments 

directly to SCFPD Board President.  Comments will be accepted via Teleconference. 

 

• No Public Comments  

 



 

 

9. CONSENT ITEMS  

 

Item 9.A: Minutes of the October 19, 2023, Board of Directors Regular Meeting. 

 

Item 9.B: Acceptance of Warrants (Check Register) – October/ November 2023 

 

Item 9.C:  Acceptance of Financial Reports – October/ November 2023  

 
Motion by Director Neal, seconded by Director Stanfield to approve the consent 
calendar. Passed by roll call vote 4/0/0/1.  

 
AYES:  4 Directors: Goulding, Rivers, Bernardi, Neal  
NOES:  0 Director:  
ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    
ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield  

 

 

10. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

No Discussion Items  

 

11. PUBLIC HEARING 

No Public Hearing Items 
 

12. ACTION ITEMS 

   

  Item 12.A: Consideration to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

Between Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District and  

Warfighter Overwatch.  

    

    Action:  Motion by Director Bernardi, seconded by Director Neal. The Board 
Approved MOU Between Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection 
District and Warfighter Overwatch 4/0/0/1.  

 
  AYES:  4 Directors: Goulding, Rivers, Bernardi, Neal  
  NOES: 0 Director:  
  ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    

ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield  

 

Item 12.B: Consideration to Approve EMS Coordinator Agreement between 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District and Megan Zimmerman 

R.N. (“EMS Coordinator”) 

    Action:  Motion by Director Neal, seconded by Vice President Rivers. The 
Board Approved the Agreement Between Stanislaus Consolidated 
Fire Protection District and Megan Zimmerman R.N. (“EMS 
Coordinator”) 4/0/0/1.  



 

 

 
  AYES:  4 Directors: Goulding, Rivers, Bernardi, Neal  
  NOES: 0 Director:  
  ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    

ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield  

Item 12.C: Consideration to Approve the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

between Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District and Central 

Valley Incident Management Team.  

    Action:  Motion by Vice President Rivers, seconded by Director Bernardi. The 
Board Approved MOA Between Stanislaus Consolidated Fire 
Protection District and Central Valley Incident Management Team 
4/0/0/1.  

 
  AYES:  4 Directors: Goulding, Rivers, Bernardi, Neal  
  NOES: 0 Director:  
  ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    

ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield  

 
Item 12.D: Consideration to Approve the purchase of a new Battalion Chief vehicle 

(2024 Chevy Tahoe 4x4 SSV), Fire Investigator Vehicle (2024 Chevy 

Tahoe 4x4 SSV), and Training Officer vehicle (2023 Chevy Silverado 

1500 4x4 Crew Cab), in a total amount not to exceed $225,000 including 

outfitting.  

    Action:  Motion by Director Neal, seconded by Vice President Rivers. The 
Board Approved the purchase of a new Battalion Chief vehicle (2024 
Chevy Tahoe 4x4 SSV), Fire Investigator Vehicle (2024 Chevy Tahoe 
4x4 SSV), and Training Officer vehicle (2023 Chevy Silverado 1500 
4x4 Crew Cab), in a total amount not to exceed $225,000 including 
outfitting. 4/0/0/1.  

 
  AYES:  4 Directors: Goulding, Rivers, Bernardi, Neal  
  NOES: 0 Director:  
  ABSTAIN: 0 Director:    

ABSENT: 1 Director: Stanfield  

 

13. COMMUNICATIONS 

Item 13.3.A – Fire Chief’s Verbal Report 

- Chief Tietjen explained the need for Engineer Summers to give an oral report to 

complete his task book in order to become a Captain. Engineer Summers provided 

an update on the month of November and December.  

Item 13.3.B – Capital Improvements 

- No Report Given  

Item 13.3.C – Finance Committee 

- No Report Given 

Item 13.3.D – Personnel Committee 



 

 

- No Report Given 

Item 13.3.E – Fire Advisory Committee with Modesto Fire Department 

- No Report Given 

Item 13.4 - Directors Comments 

- Director Bernardi thanked Captain Burke, Captain Grapes, Firefighter McManus and 

Peer Support Dog Tank, Battalion Chief DeHart, and Firefighter Tobin for their 

participation in the City of Riverbank’s Christmas Parade. He sends well wishes to 

Fire Investigator Spani for a speedy recovery and welcomed Jessica Sousa to the 

SCFPD team. He wished everyone a Merry Christmas.  

- Vice President Rivers congratulated Deputy Chief Bray on his recent promotion. He 

welcomed Jessica Soua to the SCFPD team. He thanked Firefighter McManus and 

Peer Support Dog Tank for the presentation on Warfighter Overwatch. He wished 

everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  

 

14. CLOSED SESSION 

 

Item 14.A: Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation Pursuant to Government   

Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1).  

Foster Farms Dairy et al. v. Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District – 

Fifth Appellate District Case No. F084192 

 

15. CLOSED SESSION - Report 

Closed session began at 6:55 pm and ended at 7:05 pm with no reportable action.  
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business the Board adjourned at 7:05 pm.  

 
 

ATTEST:       

 

Jessica Sousa /s/                      
Jessica Sousa, Clerk of the Board   

 





























 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  President Goulding and Members of the Board of Directors 
FROM:  Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief  
SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Appointment of Board Clerk 

DATE:             January 18, 2024 

 
BACKGROUND 
  
Because of recent staffing changes, the Board must now re-appoint a new staff member to fill 
the Board Clerk position. Health and Safety Code section 13853(b) requires the Board to appoint 
someone to the position of Board Secretary or Clerk. 

Staff are now requesting the Board of Directors adopt the attached Resolution No. 2024-01 to 
authorize the appointment of Jessica Sousa to the Board Clerk position. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
By Consent vote, adopt Resolution No. 2024-01 to authorize the hiring of a new clerk and 
appointment of Jessica Sousa to the Board Clerk position.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

 
 
 ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 2024-01 
 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us 

 
 

  

http://www.scfpd.us/


 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF BOARD CLERK 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District (“District”) 
wishes to appoint an employee who will perform various administrative tasks necessary to the conduct 
of the Board’s affairs; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 13853(b), the District’s Board of Directors wishes 
to appoint the person hired as the clerk to the Board to also fill the role of Board Clerk; and  

WHEREAS, the necessary qualifications for the appointment for the role of Clerk have been satisfied by 
the District and the individual to be appointed is Jessica Sousa. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  

1. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 13853(b), the District Board hereby authorizes the 
appointment of Jessica Sousa to fill the role of Board Clerk.  

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 18th day of January 2024, at the regular meeting of the District 
Board of Directors held at 3318 Topeka Street, Riverbank, California, on motion made by  
Director Goulding, seconded by Director Neal, and duly carried with the following roll call vote. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution 2024-01 was duly adopted by the Board of Directors by 
the following vote:  

AYES:     
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:    

 

Dated: January 18, 2024          
       Jonathan Goulding, Board President 

 
 

ATTEST :         APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

                     
Jessica Sousa, Clerk of the Board    Frank Splendorio, District Counsel  



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  
          Item 1 

 
TO:  President and Members of the Board         
FROM:  Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief 
SUBJECT: Election of 2024 Board Officers: President, Vice President, District Treasurer 
  and Clerk of the Board 
DATE:  January 18, 2024  

BACKGROUND 
The Board of Directors Policy Manual Section 2.1 – Election of Officers dictates appointments for the 
remaining Board Officers be made annually in January: 
 
 Section 2.1 - Election of Officers 

The District Board shall elect its officers at the first regular meeting in January of each year. The 
Officers of the Board are a President, Vice President, Secretary to the board and/or a Recording 
Clerk. The Board of Directors may reorganize themselves at any time if three (3) of the five (5) 
directors vote to do so. 
 

Section 2.2 – Presiding Officer (Chairperson) 
The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as Presiding Officer at all Board meetings. 
He/She shall have the same rights as the other members of the board in voting, introducing 
motions, resolutions, ordinances, and any discussion of questions which follow such actions. In 
the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors shall serve as  
Presiding Officer. If the President and Vice President of the Board are both absent, the remaining 
members present shall select one of themselves to act as Presiding Officer for the meeting.   

 
The Board President and the Fire Chief shall ensure the appropriate information and facilities are 
available for the audience at board meetings (4.6) and work cooperatively to cause regular and special 
meeting agendas to be prepared (5.1). The Board President shall determine the order in which agenda 
items are to be considered, which may also be changed by majority vote (5.2). 
 
In previous years, the Board Officers were as follows: 
 
 President  Vice President  Clerk of the Board  District Treasurer 
 2020: Bernardi Goulding  B. Hannah   Finance Manager 
 2021:   Bernardi Goulding  B. Hannah/L. Frontella A. Tammrzian 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us 
 

  

http://www.scfpd.us/


 2022:   Goulding Neal   E. Klevmyr/A. McCormick B. Withrow 
 2023:   Goulding Rivers   A. McCormick/C. Sansing B. Withrow 
 
 
Michael Speed was designated as District Treasurer at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on 
January 16, 2020. Finance Specialist Adolin Tammrzian was designated as District Treasurer at the regular 
meeting of the board of Directors at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on January 14, 2021. 
The current District Treasurer is Administrative Assistant III, Brittney Withrow who was appointed at the 
regular meeting of the Board of Directors on May 12, 2022. 
 
Betty Hannah was appointed to the position of Board Clerk in January 2019. Lori Frontella was appointed 
Board Clerk in May of 2021 followed by Deputy Fire Warden Erik Kelvmyr being appointed in November 
2021. In October of 2022 Administrative Assistant III, Amanda McCormick was appointed as Clerk of the 
Board. After Ms. McCormick’s departure with the Fire District, Administrative Assistant II, Ciera Sansing 
acted as Board Clerk for the remainder of the 2023 year. In December of 2023, Jessica Sousa filled the 
position of Administrative Assistant III/ Clerk of the Board. The current Board Clerk is Administrative 
Assistant III, Jessica Sousa who will be appointed at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on 
January 18, 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION 
All five members of the SCFPD Board of Directors have terms which do not end during this calendar year.  
 
In accordance with the Board of Directors Policy Manual, at the first meeting in January, the board must 
nominate and select new Board Officers, District Treasurer and Board Clerk. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Take action to elect a member of the Board Officers to the positions of President, Vice President, 
reappoint Brittney Withrow, Administrative Assistant III to the position of District Treasurer and appoint 
Jessica Sousa, Administrative Assistant III to the position of Clerk of the Board for the 2024 calendar year. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
            
 
TO:  President and Members of the SCFPD Board of Directors 
FROM:  Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief 
SUBJECT: Nomination and Election of the 2024 Committee Members and District 

Representative 
 
DATE:  January 18, 2024  

BACKGROUND 
At the May 10, 2012, and June 14, 2012, Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors, the Board 
discussed and established the following standing Board committees: Capital Facilities, Finance, 
and Personnel. These committees are subject to the Brown Act and consist of two board 
members each to help formulate policies along with the Fire Chief and make recommendations 
back to the Board of Directors.  Committees were established so the Board can be more efficient 
in those specific areas by helping to gather information and verify the information before it 
comes to the Board for possible action.  While the establishment of committees meant more 
commitment of Board Members’ time, it would give them better knowledge of the District’s 
policies and procedures and whether they are implemented properly under the Board’s direction.  
The types of policies and procedures the Board is to participate in are the development outlined 
in the District’s September 4, 2012, Response to 2011/2012 Civil Grand Jury Report: “The Board 
participates in the development of Board policies/procedures and fiscal-related issues not tied 
to daily operation of the District” (F5 Response); “Board approval should be sought for financial, 
purchasing and long-term, goal-oriented policies” (R3 Response).   
 
 Section 2.3.2 – Standing Committees 
 The following shall be standard committees of the Board: Personnel, Finance,  
 Capital Improvement/Facilities, and Fire Advisory.  
 
 
 Section 3.3.1 – District Representatives 

At the first regular Board Meeting in January following a general District election or 
unopposed election, a member of the Board or a staff member shall be selected to 
represent the District and another member of the Board or staff member shall be selected 
to serve as an alternate for the representation of the District at association business or 
functions in which the District is a member.   
 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us 

  

http://www.scfpd.us/


An example of an association our organization belongs to who would require representation is 
the Stanislaus County Fire Directors Association.  This has routinely been the role of the  
Board President. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
Per Board Policy, each year at the January board meeting, Board Members will nominate and 
vote to fill each of the board officer chairs and the committees as listed above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
In accordance with Board Policy 3.1 – Remuneration and Reimbursement, each member of the 
Board of Directors may receive compensation in an amount set by the District Board not to 
exceed $100 for each meeting, not to exceed four meetings in any calendar month.   
 
The 2023 committee appointments were as follows: 
 
BOARD STANDING COMMITTEES: 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT/FACILITIES     FINANCE           PERSONNEL 
Stanfield/Rivers                   Goulding/Neal           Bernardi/Stanfield 
 
Fire Advisory Committee 
Goulding/Bernardi 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
EXISTING POLICY 
SCFPD Board Policy 2 and Board Policy 3 (Attached) 
 
Attachment:  Board Policy 2 – Board Reorganization and Structure 

           Board Policy 3 – Director Compensation and Training 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends the Board take action to nominate, elect and vote for all board committee 
assignments in accordance with District Board Policy 2 – Board Organization and Structure and 
select District Representatives in accordance with District Board Policy 3.3.1. 
 
Attachment 
 
POLICY 2 - BOARD ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE 
 
2.1 - Election of Officers 

The District Board shall elect its officers at the first regular meeting in January of each year. 
The officers of the Board are a President, Vice President, Secretary to the Board /Recording 
Clerk. The Board of Directors may reorganize themselves at any time if three (3) of the five 



(5) directors vote to do so. 
 
2.2 - Presiding Officer (Chairperson) 

The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as presiding officer at all Board meetings. 
The President shall have the same rights as the other members of the Board in voting, 
introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions which 
follow such actions. In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of 
Directors shall serve as presiding officer. If the President and Vice President of the Board 
are both absent, the remaining members present shall select one of themselves to act as 
presiding officer for the meeting. 

 
2.3 - Committees of the Board 
 

2.3.1 - Ad Hoc Committees 
The Board President shall appoint such as hoc committees as may be deemed necessary or 
advisable by himself/herself and/or the Board. The duties of the ad hoc committees shall 
be outlined at the time of appointment, and the committee shall be considered dissolved 
when its final report has been made. 

 
2.3.2 - Standing Committees 
The following shall be standard committees of the Board: Capital Improvement/Facilities, 
Finance and Personnel.  

 
2.3.3 - Appointments to Committees 
The Board shall nominate and select by majority vote the members of the standing 
committees at the first meeting in January. 

 
2.3.4 - Committee Duties and Powers 
The Board's standing committees may be assigned to review District functions, activities, 
and/or operation pertaining to their designated concerns. Such assignments shall be made 
by Board President or by a majority vote of the Board. Any recommendations resulting from 
such assignments shall be submitted to the Board via a written or oral report. 

 
2.3.5 - Committee Members Tenure of Office 
All committee members serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be removed by majority 
vote of the Board at any time. Nomination and election to all committee assignments shall 
be made anytime the Board reorganizes itself. 

 
2.4 - Vacancies of the Board 
Vacancies of the Board shall be filled by the County Board of Supervisors. 
 
 

 
 



POLICY 3 - DIRECTOR COMPENSATION AND TRAINING 
 

3.3.1 - District Representatives 
At the first regular Board meeting in January following a general District election or 
unopposed election, a member of the Board or a staff member shall be selected to 
represent the District and another member of the Board or staff member shall be selected 
to serve as an alternate for the representation of the District at association business or 
functions in which the District is a member.  

 
This routinely has been the Board President with the Vice President to fill as the alternate. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  President Goulding and Members of the Board of Directors 
FROM:  Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief  
SUBJECT: Contract Agreement between Jocelyn E. Roland, Ph.D., ABPP Psychologist and 

SCFPD 

DATE:             January 18, 2024 

 
BACKGROUND 
  
Because of recent inquiries about the staff Employee Assistance Program (EAP), the contract 
between Dr. Roland and SCFPD was pulled to review. It was noted the recent contract  
July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024, was not signed by the board. This is a continuation of a current 
contact with Dr. Roland.  

Staff are now requesting the Board of Directors approve the contract between Jocelyn E. Roland, 
Ph.D., ABPP Psychologist and SCFPD.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
By Consent vote, the Board Approve the Agreement between Jocelyn E. Roland, Ph.D., ABPP 
Psychologist and Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

 
 
 ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Independent Contractor Services Agreement for Jocelyn E. Roland, PH.D., ABPP 
 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection 
District 

3324 Topeka Street 
Riverbank, CA 95367 

Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 
www.scfpd.us 

 
 

  

http://www.scfpd.us/








 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

            

 

TO:  President and Members of the Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief 

  By: Andy Heath, Financial Consultant 

  

SUBJECT: FY 2023-24 Mid-Year Budget / Financial Forecast Review  

 

DATE:            January 18, 2024 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive a presentation on and approve the Mid-Year 

Budget revisions for Fiscal Year 2023-24; and an overview of the district-wide Financial Forecast 

and direct staff with any further updates as necessary. 

 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Staff has completed a preliminary review of fiscal activity incurred over the first half of Fiscal Year 

2023-24.  As such, revenue and expenditures expected over the remaining half of the fiscal year have 

been updated based on activity-to-date and preliminary final results from the fiscal year ending June 

30, 2023.   

 

Staff has also completed a comprehensive update of the district-wide Financial Forecast, 

incorporating key changes since the Board last received the forecast during adoption of the budget 

for FY 2023-24.  These changes will be discussed in the memorandum and during a presentation to 

the Board on this item. 

 

An overview of the FY 2022-23 actual fiscal activity and the updated Mid-Year 2023-24 estimated 

fiscal activity is noted in the Budget Overview below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 

Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us 



 

 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

Sub-Acct Summary FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24

Final Results Adopted Budget Mid-Year Budget

Projected Recurring Revenues 14,801,114.00$           13,681,062.00$          14,355,115.00$               

Operational Expenditures

5000 Salaries and Benefits 10,377,787.00$           10,298,960.00$          10,364,127.00$               

6000 Services & Supplies 2,374,527.00$             2,485,226.00$            2,423,600.00$                 

Total Operational Expenditures 12,752,314.00$           12,784,186.00$          12,787,727.00$               

Subtotal 2,048,800.00$             896,876.00$               1,567,388.00$                 

Capital Budget (Restricted/Reserve funded)

7040 Capital/Facility Improvement Projects 170,060.00$               335,059.00$               335,059.00$                    

7800 Capital Equipment 2,087.00$                   575,242.00$               575,242.00$                    

Total Capital 172,147.00$               910,301.00$               910,301.00$                    

8100 To or (From) Unallocated Reserve Funds 1,876,653.00$             (13,425.00)$                657,087.00$                    

Budget Overview

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

 
 

As noted in the Budget Overview table above, the District ended Fiscal Year 2022-23 with a surplus 

of just under $1.88 million.  Although the surplus is made up of many revenue- and expenditure-

related components, it can be primarily attributed to the ongoing receipt of Proposition 172 funds 

shared between the County of Stanislaus and the District in the amount of $766,507; the receipt of 

$514,251 in SAFER Grant revenue to offset costs incurred for six full-time firefighters; and the 

receipt of $474,889 related to a Special District CARES Act allocation of funding (note – a total of 

$949,778 was received over a two-year period).  

 

The $1.88 million surplus generated from last fiscal year results in the District having approximately 

$7.64 million in General Fund reserves as of June 30, 2023.  Of this amount, $923,672 is specifically 

reserved for much-needed apparatus replacement and deferred maintenance once approved by the 

Board of Directors.  These capital funds are reserved when they are not spent during a given fiscal 

year (in FY 2022-23, $419,405 of unspent capital funding originally appropriated was added to the 

capital reserve).  Reserve levels as of June 30, 2023 and estimated for the balance of the current 

fiscal year are noted below: 

 



 

FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24

Final Results Adopted Budget Mid-Year Budget

Beginning Fund Balance 5,885,267.00$             7,636,900.00$            7,636,900.00$                 

   Net Surplus (Deficit) 1,876,653.00$             (13,425.00)$                657,087.00$                    

   Reduction for Current Year Dvlpmt Fees (125,020.00)$              (65,000.00)$                (230,000.00)$                   

   Reduction for Capital Set-Aside -$                           -$                          -$                               

   Ending Fund Balance 7,636,900.00$             7,558,475.00$            8,063,987.00$                 

ACTUAL / BUDGETED RESERVES

 
 

 

MID-YEAR BUDGET / ESTIMATES 

 

As noted in the Budget Overview table, it is anticipated that the District will receive $14,355,155 in 

revenue and incur $13,698,028 in expenditures; and realize a surplus of $657,087 as updated for 

Fiscal Year 2023-24.  These amounts compare to the originally budgeted amounts as follows: 

 

Comparison of current Budget-to-Actual performance: 

 

 Revenues Expenditures 

FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget $ 13,681,062 $ 13,694,487 

Estimated Amounts @ 06/30/24 $ 14,355,115 $ 13,698,028 

   

Recommended Adjustment $ 674,053 $ 3,541 

     

As indicated above, it is anticipated that the District will need to adjust originally budgeted revenues 

upward by $674,053 and expenditures upward by $3,541.   

 

In summary, the proposed net increase of $674,053 in revenues is comprised of the following: 

 
Revenue Type Amount Reason / Rationale 

Interest Earnings $27,500 

- Increase in interest earnings due to higher rates in 

the general market and larger cash balances in 

district accounts (note: most held by County for the 

District) 

Strike Team Personnel $57,235 

- Actual collections of Strike Team personnel / 

administrative / apparatus reimbursements based on 

District participation statewide 

Fire Investigator Reimbursement $10,000 

- Increase in Fire Investigator Reimbursement based 

on additional overtime billing and receipts in prior 

and current years 

Admin / CEQA / Impact Fees $165,000 

- Increase in restricted revenues for Administrative / 

CEQA / Impact fee programs based on significant 

increase in development district-wide  

   



 

Revenues, cont. 

 

Revenue Type Amount Reason / Rationale 

RDA RPTTF Residuals $25,000 

- Increase in RDA RPTTF Residuals based on prior 

year collections; and as former redevelopment 

obligations are paid off by other jurisdictions 

Secured Property Taxes $111,470 

- Increase in Secured Property Taxes based on 

updated Secured Roll growth provided by Stanislaus 

County (6.5%+) 

Special Assessments $185,034 
- Increase in Special Assessments based on 

Assessment Roll submitted to Stanislaus County 

Supplemental Property Taxes $15,000 

- Increase in Supplemental Property Taxes based on 

prior year collections and continued higher levels of 

property sales 

County of Stanislaus RDA Pass-

Throughs 
$11,000 

- Increase in RDA Pass-Throughs based on prior year 

collections  

Proposition 172 Funding $56,814 
- Increase in Proposition 172 Funding based on actual 

allocation received from County for FY 2023-24 

Residual Other Revenues $10,000 
- All other revenue sources not specifically identified 

above 

 

The proposed increase to expenditures of $3,541 is comprised of the following: 

 
Expenditure Type Amount Reason / Rationale 

5010 – Salaries & Wages ($16,985) 

- Anticipated decrease to Salaries & Wages due to 

vacant positions and ultimate filling of positions – 

some salary savings incurred to date  

5011-3 – Education Incentive $16,200 
- Increase in Education Incentives due to higher level 

of workforce participation 

5012 – Employee Med. Waiver $6,014 
- Increase in Employee Medical Waiver costs due to 

increased participation by employees in program  

5016 – FLSA $7,004 
- Increased FLSA costs consistent with higher levels 

of overtime 

5019 – Payroll Tax Expense $10,003 
- Increase in Payroll Taxes due to higher levels of 

overtime 

5021 - Overtime $50,000 
- Increase in overtime due to actual expenditures 

incurred to date / participation in Strike Teams 

5031 – Retirement Expense $47,755 

- Increase in anticipated retirement costs due mix of 

employees participating in PEPRA vs. Classic 

programs  

5041 – Medical Insurance ($26,648) 

- Reduction in anticipated medical insurance costs 

due to higher employee participation in Employee 

Medical Waiver program / Vacancy savings 

5061 – Workers Comp Insurance ($18,226) 
- Decrease in Workers Compensation costs related to 

workers comp claims experience  

6061 – Fiduciary / Liability 

Insurance  
($88,043) 

- Decrease in Fiduciary / Liability Insurance based on 

prior year change-over to more cost-effective 

program 

   



Expenditures, cont.   

Expenditure Type Amount Reason / Rationale 

6249-4 – Telestaff / Voxeo ($7,080) 
- Decrease in Telestaff / Voxeo based on prior year 

realized expenditures 

6149-7 – SR 911 Dispatch Costs $23,497 
- Increase in SR 911 Dispatch Costs based on 

updated contractual amount for FY 2023-24 

6201 – Fuel & Oil $10,000 
- Increase in Fuel & Oil costs related to continued 

higher costs for fuel 

Residual Other Expenditures ($9,950) 
- All other expenditures not specifically identified 

above 

 

Staff recommends that the Board consider the recommended changes to the FY 2023-24 noted 

above.  

 

 

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL FORECAST UDPATE 

 

As has been discussed during prior year budget and budget update presentations, staff has updated 

the district-wide Financial Forecast.  The forecast is developed and updated to create a  

forward-looking, conservative baseline budgetary outlook for the District’s budget and related fund 

balance under a given set of revenue and expenditure growth assumptions.  The forecast is built as a 

long-term “base-case” model which only focuses on ongoing revenues and expenditures (strips out 

one-time fiscal activity long-term).   

 

The FY 2023-24 budgeted and future anticipated amounts are updated in the forecast and include the 

following: 

 

• Increased property taxes and related revenues based on growth in assessed valuation noted 

from County (6.59%). 

• Increased assessment collections to amount indicated in final assessment report for FY 2023-

24. 

• Higher interest earnings revenue based on increased interest rates.  

• Increased CEQA development-related revenues due to large scale development in District 

(these revenues are restricted). 

• Grant revenues for FEMA SAFER Grant exhausted after FY 2023-24 – the six positions 

remain in budget. 

• Fire Strike Team revenues only recognized to the extent collected. 

• Assumption that all authorized and funded positions are filled from the time of forecast 

completion (Dec 2023).  

• Returning CalPERS UAL costs updated starting in FY 2024-25 – Range from $304,000 to 

$1.1 million annually over term of forecast. 

• Salary costs updated to reflect active personnel and salaries paid as of December 2023 

• Overtime budget remains at $1.2 million throughout all years of forecast.  

 

 

 

 



Additionally, the following key assumptions are built into the longer-term forecast (future years): 

 

• Moderate revenue growth (Property Tax – 2.0%; Assessment – 3.0% for all future years). 

• There are no negotiated salary increases built in beginning in FY 2024-25.  

• Forecast includes 1% across-the-board labor inflator to account for step increases for each 

year in forecast. 

• Annual increases to CPI-based cost drivers (General / Fuel / Utilities / Legal / Insurance / 

Contracts) range from 1.5% - 2.0% 

• Health costs increase by 2% for all years in forecast. 

• CalPERS costs built in consistent with August 2023 Actuarial Reports – CalPERS UAL 

costs will return in FY 2024-25 and are expected to remain for all years thereafter in 

forecast. 

• Ongoing capital funding of $606,169 built in for each year beginning in FY 2024-25 (debt 

service already set up for new Fire Truck; and $923,672 available in unspent prior-year 

funding; and $740,242 budgeted in FY 2023-24).  

• All authorized / funded positions assumed filled – no vacant positions for every year in 

forecast. 

 

Given the assumptions and attributes built into the long-term forecast as noted above, the District 

can expect recently realized and expected surpluses to wane.  The updated forecast is noted below: 

 

 
 

Although no deficits are currently projected for any of the years in the forecast, there are key 

elements to the forecast that could significantly impact future budgets, particularly future negotiated 

salary increases and CalPERS Unfunded Liability costs, which will return to the expenditure base in 

FY 2024-25.  As noted in prior Board Meetings, it will be prudent to continue to update the forecast 

as frequently as possible to assure the Board understands the most up-to-date fiscal framework under 

a given set of assumptions. 

 

This forecast will be further discussed at the Board Meeting on January 18, 2024. 

 

 



 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve the attached FY 2023-24 Mid-Year Budget 

Review and revisions.   



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:  President Goulding and Members of the Board of Directors 
FROM:  Tim Tietjen, Fire Chief  
SUBJECT: Deputy Fire Chief Contract 

DATE:             January 18, 2024 

 
BACKGROUND 
On November 24th after an internal and external recruitment Battalion Chief Clint Bray was 
promoted to Deputy Fire Chief for Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District. As it has been 
in the past this position has its own contract with SCFPD, much like local 3399 and the Battalion 
Chiefs. We have before you the contract for Chief Bray that details out all the benefits that are 
specific to the Deputy Chief position and placement on the salary range of Deputy Fire Chief with 
SCFPD. The terms of this contract are from November 24th, 2023, to December 31st, 2026. This 
was set to be approved at the December 2023 meeting, but the meeting was cancelled, and the 
item is back before you tonight.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the approval of the contract for Deputy Fire Chief Clint Bray, effective 
November 24th, 2023, through December 31st, 2026.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

This position is currently budgeted and allocated in the 23/24 fiscal year budget and ongoing for 
SCFPD. There will be no additional impacts to the SCFPD budget. 

 
 
 ATTACHMENTS: 
 

A. Deputy Fire Chief Contract. 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 
3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 
Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us 

 
 

  

http://www.scfpd.us/


 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  

AND CLINT R BRAY 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of December 21, 2023 by and between the 

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (“District”) and Clint R Bray (“Employee”), 

being effective from November 24, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) with respect to terms and conditions of 

employment of Employee as Deputy Fire Chief for District.   

 

 WHEREAS District desires to employ the services of Employee as Deputy Fire Chief of the District; and  

 

WHEREAS Employee desires to accept employment as Deputy Fire Chief of the District on the terms and 

conditions contained in this Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement the parties 

agree as follows: 

 

1. AUTHORITY AND DUTIES 

 

The Deputy Fire Chief position is responsible for the efficient administration of all affairs and 

responsibilities assigned which are under his control.  The duties of the Deputy Fire Chief shall include, but 

not be limited to the District’s own Rules, Regulations, Policies, Procedures and classification 

responsibilities.  District hereby employs Employee as Deputy Fire Chief, to perform the following 

functions and duties: 

 

A. Oversee Division(s) of the District as assigned, including, but not limited to:  Operations, 

Administration and Training; direct and supervise all personnel and activities of the District as 

assigned. 

 

B. Enforce all ordinances and rules and regulations of the District and see that all contracts, permits and 

privileges granted by the District Board of Directors (“Board”) are complied with and observed as 

directed by the Fire Chief. 

 

C. Provide recommendations to the Fire Chief for appointments, removals, promotions and demotions of 

any and all officers and employees of the District and agencies represented.  

 

D. Control, order and give directions to all subordinate officers and employees of the District and 

Agencies under his areas of responsibility. 

 

E. In the absence of the Fire Chief assume all District Fire Chief responsibilities as second in command.  

 

F. Prepare and disseminate technical and District/Agencies activity reports and records. 

 

G. Assist the Fire Chief with the Preparation and administration of the Districts and Agencies annual 

budgets and develop and maintain Districts and Agencies strategic plans and goals. 

 

H. Attend necessary administrative and operational meetings, as well as civic and/or governmental 

meetings requiring the presence of a District representative. 

 

I. Be available to respond to, and direct District and Agencies personnel in responding to fires and other 

emergency incidents. 

 



 2 

J. Perform such other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Fire Chief may assign 

from time to time. 

 

2. TERM    

 

A. The specified term is three (3) years from the Effective Date of the Agreement, November 24, 2023 

through November 24, 2026.  The position of Deputy Chief is a permanent position and has 

recognized property rights with the position similar to other District employees.  The position of 

Deputy Chief is an “Exempt” position for overtime calculations, except for Out-of-County 

Assignments (see below) and the Central Valley Incident Management Team.  

 

B. Out-of-County Assignment(s) – If the Deputy Chief is assigned to strike team/CFAA/FMAG requests         

for assistance etc., the Deputy Chief will earn overtime starting at the time his official regular work           

hours cease and ending when his official regular work hours begin.   

 

3. AGREEMENT TERMINATION 

  

This Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following: 

 

A. Death 

 

This Agreement shall terminate upon the death of Employee.  If in the event termination should occur 

under this provision, the District’s total liability shall be limited to payment of Employee’s 

compensation due at the date of death, along with such benefits as may have accrued and are vested at 

the date of death, and which are payable to Employee’s survivors or beneficiaries. 

 

B. Termination for cause 

 

1. Employee may be terminated as Deputy Fire Chief for cause in the sole exercise of discretion of 

the Board.  “For cause” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events: 

 

a. Employee substantially refuses or fails to perform Employee’s duties herein or negligently 

damages the business or reputation of the District;  

 

b. Employee engages in misconduct of such serious a nature as to constitute grounds for 

termination for cause under applicable law; 

 

c. Insubordination or malfeasance; 

 

d. Conviction of a felony or conviction of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude.  This 

includes a plea or verdict of guilty, or conviction following a plea of no contest, to a charge 

of a felony or any offense involving moral turpitude. 

 

In the event the Board determines grounds exist for termination of Employee for cause, Employee 

shall be given notice, stating specifically the grounds for the termination action.  Employee shall have 

the right to review documents, materials, names of witnesses and other evidence upon which the 

proposed termination is based, and given a copy of such documents, materials and other evidence 

insofar as it is possible to do so.   Employee shall be afforded ten (10) working days to appeal to the 

Board.   

 

 

C. Return to previous rank and pay grade 

 



 3 

Employee retains the right to return to previously held rank of Battalion Chief if the position of 

Deputy Chief is eliminated. 

 

4. PHYSICAL FITNESS 

 

The District has a vested interest in the Employee’s continuing physical fitness.  The District will provide 

an annual physical examination.  Employee will maintain a fitness level commensurate with his position. 

 

5. SALARY AND BENEFITS 

 

Benefits not specifically described in this Agreement will follow accepted District practice/protocol for all 

employees. 

  

A. Salary  

 

1. Base salary for the employee as of the commencement of this Agreement will be Step C of the 

current District salary schedule for Deputy Fire Chief. 

 

2. Salary increases shall maintain parity with the Battalion Chief Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

 

B. Leave Accrual 

 

1. Vacation Leave - accrual and usage will be the same as the Battalion Chiefs. 

 

2. Employee may not accumulate more than 600 hours of Vacation Leave. (Not counting Old-Bank) 

 

3. An election opportunity will be held each year in June, at which time employees will have the 

opportunity to make an irrevocable election to cash-out vacation or holiday hours that are 

scheduled to accrue during July 1 through June 30 of the next fiscal year (“Accrual Period”).   

Employees may elect to cash out up to a maximum of 291 hours for 40-hour personnel or 408 

hours for 56-hour personnel of vacation or holiday time that will accrue during the Accrual 

Period, paid at straight time. However, those employees electing to make a cash-out must elect to 

cash-out a minimum of 57 hours for 40-hour personnel or 81 hours for 56-hour personnel.  

 

Employees may not elect to cash-out vacation or holidays that have already been accrued at the 

time of the election.  An employee must submit a new election for every period in which he or 

she wishes to cash-out vacation or holiday hours accruing in a subsequent period.  Due to IRS 

regulations, elections will not carry over from one period to the next.  The election form will be 

made available in June by the HR Director.  

  

The elected cash-out for the Accrual Period will be paid concurrently with the last pay date of the 

Accrual Period.  If vacation and/or holiday hours that accrued during the Accrual Period are less 

than the amount elected by an employee, the District will adjust the election accordingly.  

Holiday pay that is cashed-out, no less frequently than once a year, in the same year in which it is 

earned shall be reported to CalPERS as special compensation pursuant to Section 571(a)(5) of 

Title 2 of the State of California Code of Regulations. 

 

Special compensation items must meet the definitions listed in 571 (a) as well as the criteria listed 

in 571 (b) to be reported to CalPERS. 

 

D. Sick Leave 

 



 4 

Sick leave accrual and usage will be the same as for all District employees. 

 

Sick leave balance in the amount of 4,812 hours accrued at the 56 hour rate at the time of appointment 

to Deputy Chief effective 11/24/2023; shall be held in a bank at that amount for retirement factoring.  

Actual cash-out election will remain at the 40-hour conversion rate.  

 

Sick leave hours are intended solely to provide income protection in the event of illness or injury and 

may not be used for any other absence.  

 

Upon termination or departure from employment with the District (not resulting from retirement, 

death, the creation of a joint powers authority in which the District is a member, or the merger or 

consolidation of the District, etc.), 25% of unused sick leave shall be cashed out to the employee.  

Remaining unused sick leave shall be forfeited. 

 

In the event the District enters into a joint powers agreement, merger, consolidation, etc. with another 

agency(cies) and, as a result, an employee is no longer employed by the District, the District and the 

Union agree to meet and confer for the purpose of addressing how then existing unused sick leave 

accruals (banks) shall be allocated.  Subject to applicable laws, the District and Union’s preference is 

that such sick leave shall be contributed to a retiree health savings account to be used to reimburse the 

cost of retiree health insurance or converted to additional service credit for retirement purposes.   

 

Upon retirement from District service or death while in District service, the employee’s unused sick 

leave accrual shall be converted to additional CalPERS service credit.  If the conversion of an 

employee’s unused sick leave to service credit would result in service credit in excess of the 90% 

ceiling for local safety members, only the amount of unused sick leave needed to reach the applicable 

ceiling will be certified to CalPERS.  For employees hired on or before July 1, 2017, the remaining 

unused sick leave will be cashed out to the employee in amount not to exceed 25% of the value 

(calculated at the employee’s hourly rate at the time of the cash-out). The percentage in the preceding 

sentence will be reduced to 20% for employees hired after July 1, 2017 and will be reduced to zero for 

employees hired on or after April 9, 2020 

 

E. Executive Leave 

 

Employee shall be credited with 88 hours Executive (Administrative) Leave per year.  This leave is not 

reimbursable if not used and is not accrued from year to year.  The District recognizes that while a 40-

hour workweek is used for accounting purposes, Employee is expected to work the hours necessary to 

accomplish the duties of the position.  This includes numerous after hours activities.  Employee may 

adjust hours of Employee’s work to reflect such activities through the use of these leave credits. 

 

F. Health, Dental and Vision Insurance 

 

The District agrees to continue providing medical, dental and vision care coverage at no cost for 

employees and their eligible dependents. A cafeteria plan will be offered for enhanced 

medical/dental/vision options. District agrees to meet & confer prior to any benefit change, as well as 

to continuously work to find increased/differing levels of coverage. 

 

Upon retirement, retirees will be eligible to participate in Medical, Dental and Vision plans sponsored 

by the District, provided that the retirees pay the entire premium for the selected plan, (the District 

pays nothing). Retirees are responsible for adhering to all rules and regulations regarding the offered 

plans.   

 

For employees hired on or before July 1, 2017, upon retirement from District service or death while in 

District service, the District will contribute an amount equal to the value of 50% of the employee’s 



 5 

unused sick leave accrual to a retiree health savings account to be used to reimburse the retiree’s, or 

his or her eligible dependent’s, expenses for medical, dental and vision benefits pursuant to applicable 

plan documents, laws and regulations.  The percentage in the preceding sentence will be reduced to 

35% for employees hired on or after July 2, 2017 and on or before January 1, 2018, and to 25% for 

employees hired on or after January 2, 2018 and on or before January 1, 2020.  This contribution will 

no longer be offered for employees hired after January 1, 2020.  It is understood that this contribution 

shall not constitute a conversion of unused sick leave.  Rather, unused sick leave shall be merely used 

as a variable in calculating the amount of contributions that the District will make to a retiree health 

savings account on behalf of eligible employees. 

 

G. Retirement 

 

The District has contracted with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to 

provide retirement benefits for District employees. The District has amended its contract with 

CalPERS to reflect the provision of the 3% @ 50 retirement program. These benefits shall remain 

unchanged for all employees hired prior to January 1, 2013.  Effective the first full pay period 

following April 9, 2020 employees who are classified by CalPERS as Classic employees agree to a 

cost share of an additional three percent (3%) for a total contribution of 12%. The employee member 

contribution is 9%. An additional cost sharing pension contribution of three percent (3%) shall initially 

be implemented outside of a CalPERS contract amendment as authorized by Government Code 

Section 20516(f).  As soon as administratively feasible the District shall implement a PERS contract 

amendment to reflect the additional three percent (3%) cost share agreement, for a total member 

contribution of 12%.  This pension contribution shall extend beyond the expiration of this MOU and 

shall constitute the status quo ante for all future negotiations. Should the District reach agreement with 

Local 3399 or any other current or future  Classic Safety CalPERS member after April 9, 2020 and that 

agreement provides for a CalPERS employee contribution less than currently paid by the B/Cs, the 

B/Cs contribution rate shall be equal to the amount paid by Local 3399 or any other current or future  

Classic Safety CalPERS member. 

 

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who are deemed “new members” by CalPERS are subject 

to the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), including the 2.7% at 57 retirement 

formula and a mandatory employee contribution equal to 50% of normal costs as determined by 

CalPERS on an annual basis.  However, employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who are deemed 

classic members by CalPERS are subject to the same retirement benefits available to employees hired 

prior to January 1, 2013.    

Other amendments in the District’s CalPERS contract include the fourth level of 1959 survivor 

benefits pursuant to Government Code Section 21574, and the one-year final compensation period 

pursuant to Government Code Section 20042. However, employees deemed “new members” by 

CalPERS are subject to a three year final compensation period pursuant to Government Code Section 

7522.32.   

 

The District has also amended its CalPERS contract to add provisions pursuant to Government Code 

Section 20965, which provides for the conversion of unused sick leave to additional service credit, at 

no additional cost to employees. Under the District’s CalPERS contract, 8 hours of unused sick leave 

equals one workday and 2000 hours equals 1 year of service credit. 

An employee may also elect to purchase up to four years of service credit for any active military or 

merchant marine service performed prior to employment with the District as outlined in Government 

Code Section 21024. Employees may be eligible for other opportunities to purchase service credit 

through CalPERS associated with prior service.  Interested employees should contact CalPERS for 

more information. 

 

Employee may apply accrued sick leave as retirement credit according to District contract with PERS. 

 



 6 

H. Vehicle 

 

District shall provide Employee with a District owned and maintained vehicle for Employee’s use for 

District/Agency business. 

 

I. Life Insurance 

 

The District agrees to provide term life insurance for all represented personnel in the amount of 

$100,000 at no cost to the employee. 

 

Note that employer provided group term life insurance in excess of $50,000 for employees is 

considered by the Internal Revenue Service to be a benefit that is taxable as income. The Internal 

Revenue Code requires employers to calculate taxable income for employees that receive more than 

$50,000 in term life coverage, which must be reported on the employee’s W-2 form.   

 

J. Long-Term Disability Insurance 

 

The District agrees to pay the member’s contribution to the California Association of Professional 

Firefighters’ Long-Term Disability Plan. 

 

K. Uniform Allowance 

 

The Deputy Chief shall receive a uniform allowance of $1,500.00 per fiscal year. The allowance will 

be disbursed as a bi-weekly allowance of $57.69 paid per pay period and received each pay day.  

The purpose of this allowance is to fund the purchase and maintenance of those items required to 

maintain compliance with the District’s uniform policy. 

 

The purpose of this allowance is to fund the purchase and maintenance of those items required to 

maintain compliance with the District’s uniform policy. 

 

L. Executive Development  

 

Employee shall be granted $1,000 per fiscal year; use is determined by District Policy/Practice. 

 

M. Education Incentive and Tuition Reimbursement 

 

This section applies to all fire service related educational tracks which may include, but not limited to, 

Chief Officer certification, Executive Fire Officer Program, Associates, Bachelors and Masters 

accredited classes.  

 

Each January all Battalion Chiefs shall meet separately with the Fire Chief or their designee to identify 

the individual’s educational goals for the upcoming calendar year. The Fire Chief or their designee 

will evaluate the content of the educational track to ensure it meets the intent of the District to 

willingly support education that mutually benefits the District and the individual. Other educational 

opportunities presented throughout the year will be evaluated by the Deputy Chief to ensure mutual 

benefits. Each Battalion Chief must submit an education plan annually. 

 

The District agrees to cover approved educational opportunity by incurring the cost of tuition, capped 

at $800.00 per year, for lodging, incidentals and daily per diem meals as authorized by the State of 

California and found within the following web address: 

(http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx). In turn, the student agrees to 

reimburse the District all incurred costs for early withdraw, unsuccessful completion or expulsion from 

the class.  The employee must arrange his/her own time off. 



 7 

 

District education reimbursement limited to a total of $800.00 per employee per year for section 12-1.  

There shall be no additional educational reimbursements. 

 

 The District and the Battalion Chiefs agree to the following educational incentive program. 

  Education Incentive Plan is as follows: (Only one is applicable) 

 

     CSFM Chief Officer Certification     2.5% of base pay or 

    AA/AS Degree                                   2.5% of base pay or 

     BA/BS Degree                                   5% of base pay or  

     Master’s Degree                                 5% of base pay or 

 

To receive the education incentive the employee must provide a copy of the CSFM Chief Officer 

Certification and/or a copy of the degree from an accredited college to the District.  A conformation 

letter will be sent to the employee confirming the date when the incentive will become effective. 

Any dispute arising from the accreditation determination will be decided between a panel consisting of 

one member from management, a representative from the Battalion Chiefs and a representative from 

the SCFPD Board of Directors. 

 

All education incentives are to be paid as part of the normal bi-weekly payroll process and shall be 

considered PERSable income for retirement purposes as permitted by the law. 

 

N. Family Care Leave, Bereavement Leave, Jury Duty Leave, Emergency Leave 

 

Employee shall be entitled to such leave according to the Rules and Regulations of the District or 

exception provided by the Board. 

 

O. Destruction of Personal Property 

 

Upon approval of the Board, the District shall reimburse Employee the replacement cost of any 

personal property used in performance of District duties that is damaged, stolen, lost or destroyed in 

the course of employment through no negligence of the Employee. 

 

P. CENTRAL VALLEY RETIREE MEDICAL TRUST  

 

MONTHLY EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT. The Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection 

District (hereafter, the “District”) and the Battalion Chiefs bargaining unit agree that the District shall 

contribute an amount of $100.00 per month per Battalion Chief employee on a pre-tax basis to the 

Central Valley Retiree Medical Trust (hereafter, the “Trust”) pursuant to the requirements in Section 

2, “Remittance of Contributions” below. The monies contributed to the Trust fund shall only be used 

for retiree medical expenses (including health insurance premiums, health services, and medical 

supplies) and/or reasonable administrative expenses therefor. The employee shall not have the option 

to receive a cash payout of the employee contribution to the Trust in lieu of the transfer to the Trust. 

 

REMITTANCE OF CONTRIBUTIONS. The District shall remit the above monthly contributions to 

the Trust for the duration of the Memorandum of Understanding. Those contributions shall be remitted 

monthly, in one aggregate transfer to the custodian of the Central Valley Retiree Medical Trust within 

10 days. In addition, the District shall submit a monthly list of contribution employees to the Plan 

Administrator, Delta Health Systems, P.O. Box. 2487. Stockton, CA 95201 Fax (209) 940-5255, 

Email: aaguirre@deltafund.com. 

 

mailto:aaguirre@deltafund.com


 8 

This District herby acknowledges receipts of the Trust Agreement governing the Trust and will 

comply with rules set by the Trust Office in regard to reporting and remitting the required 

contributions set forth above. 

 

 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

 

Employee shall not accept favors from suppliers or District residents who have association with suppliers 

or District residents who are conducting business or who are about to conduct business with the District, in 

the form of payment, compensation, loans, financial favor, nor engage in any conduct which could 

constitute or be claimed to constitute a conflict of interest as defined under Government Code section 1090 

et seq. and applicable law.   Employee shall not have a financial interest as defined by Government Code 

section 87100 et seq. and applicable law in the business of a supplier or influence transactions with the 

owner or representative of a supplier.  Employee shall consider his involvement in any aspect of District 

business or procedures where conflict of interest or prohibited financial interest appears possible and report 

such involvement to the Board. Failure to report a potential conflict of interest or prohibited financial 

interest will be subject to the imposition of discipline in the District Board’s discretion. 

 

Consistent with the provisions of State law as to political activities, Employee shall not engage in any 

activities that create a conflict of interest with his duties as Deputy Chief or the interests of the District. 

 

8. EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

 

District shall reimburse, provided that prior approval is obtained from the Board of Directors, all 

reasonable, actual and necessary expenses of Employee in performing the duties of the Deputy Chief. 

 

9. INDEMNIFICATION AND DEFENSE OF EMPLOYEE 

 

A. District shall, consistent with the provision of Government Code sections 810 et seq., defend, save and 

hold harmless, and indemnify Employee against any tort, professional liability, claim or demand or 

any legal action, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the course and scope of 

Employee’s duties or actions related to his position as Deputy Chief.  The District will provide and 

pay a full legal defense with a mutually agreed upon attorney representing Employee’s interest. 

 

B. District shall provide and pay for all cost of any fidelity or other bonds required of the Employee. 

10. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

The District, in consultation with Employee shall fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, 

as it may determine from time to time, relating to the performance of Employee, provided such terms are 

not inconsistent with or in conflict with the provisions of this Agreement, and such conditions shall be 

contained in a resolution or amendment to this Agreement. 

 

11. GENERAL PROVISION 

 

The section headings used in this Agreement are for reference and convenience and shall not by 

themselves determine the construction of this Agreement. 

 

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California 

applicable to contracts between California residents entered into and wholly to be performed in such state. 

 

The language of this Agreement shall be liberally interpreted in such fashion as to carry out the intent of 

the Agreement. 

 



 9 

Should either party commence any legal action or proceeding against the other based upon the Agreement 

venue for which shall only be in the Superior Court of Stanislaus County if commenced in State Court and 

in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California in Fresno, California if commenced 

in Federal Court.  The prevailing party in any legal action or proceeding shall be entitled to an award of 

reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

 

12. CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS OR WAIVERS 

 

No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and signed by the parties 

hereto unless otherwise stated herein.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless 

it is in writing and signed by the party against who the waiver is sought to be enforced.  The failure of a 

party to insist upon strict performance of any provision of this Agreement in any one or more instances 

shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the right to insist upon strict compliance with such 

provision in the future. 

 

13. NOTICES 

 

Any notice relating to this Agreement shall be deemed sufficiently given and served for all purposes when 

delivered personally or by generally recognized overnight courier service, or three business days after 

deposit in the United States mail, certified or registered, return receipt requested with postage prepaid 

addressed as follows: 

 

 If to Employee: 

 

       Clint Bray 

       7849 Fox Rd 

                         Hughson, Ca 95326  

   

 If to District: 

 

  President 

  Board of Directors 

  Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

  3324 Topeka Street   

  Riverbank, CA 95367 

 

  

   

 

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or written, between the parties hereto 

with respect to the employment of Employee by the District and contains all the covenants and agreements 

between the parties with respect to the employment of Employee by the District.  Each party agrees and 

acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises, or agreements, orally or otherwise, have 

been made by any party or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied herein and that 

any agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall not be valid or binding on 

either party. 

 

15. NOT ASSIGNABLE 

 

This Agreement is personal to Employee and Distinct, and is not assignable.  Any attempt to assign 

shall immediately terminate this Agreement. 



 10 

 

16. CONSTRUCTION 

 

Employee acknowledges that Employee has entered into and executed this Agreement voluntarily and with 

full knowledge and appreciation of the meaning, scope, effect, and significance of each and every 

provision contained herein; that Employee has had the opportunity to seek independent legal advice 

concerning this Agreement; and that Employee does not rely and has not relied upon any representation or 

statement made by the District or any of its representatives with regard to the subject matter, consideration, 

basis, scope, effect, and significance of each and every provision of this Agreement. 

 

17. SEVERABILITY 

 

If any portion of this Agreement is held unconstitutional, unenforceable, or invalid, the remainder of this 

Agreement shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

District: 

 

STANISLAUS CONSOLIDATED  

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

___________________________________  December 21, 2023 

Jonathan Goulding, Board President   Date 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________  December 21, 2023 

Clint Bray, Deputy Chief                Date 

 

 

Approved as to Form 

DISTRICT COUNSEL 

 

 

___________________________________  December 21, 2023 

       Date 



Month Fire 100

Reture/ 

Explosion 

200

EMS/ 

Rescue 

300

Hazardous 

Condition 

400

Service 

Call 500

Good 

Intent 

600

False 

Call 700

Severe 

Weather 

800

Other              

900

Shift 

Totals 

Jan-22 20 1 304 22 49 57 24 0 3 480

Feb-22 30 0 251 13 20 35 16 0 2 367

Mar-22 15 0 286 11 37 50 12 0 2 413

Apr-22 24 0 299 8 28 53 14 0 1 427

May-22 28 0 311 6 52 48 8 0 1 454

Jun-22 29 0 289 6 53 67 25 0 1 470

Jul-22 69 0 316 11 37 56 14 1 0 504

Aug-22 35 0 274 7 61 66 14 0 0 457

Sep-22 21 0 279 8 44 63 13 1 1 430

Oct-22 26 0 280 8 41 61 14 0 0 430

Nov-22 34 0 301 14 50 69 18 0 0 486

Dec-22 18 0 320 9 37 69 15 0 0 468

TOTAL 349 1 3510 123 509 694 187 2 11 5386

Month Fire 100

Reture/ 

Explosion 

200

EMS/ 

Rescue 

300

Hazardous 

Condition 

400

Service 

Call 500

Good 

Intent 

600

False 

Call 700

Severe 

Weather 

800

Other              

900

Shift 

Totals 

Jan-22 50 2 359 32 62 106 29 0 2 642

Feb-22 79 0 309 17 24 84 22 0 2 537

Mar-22 44 0 347 19 43 89 16 0 3 561

Apr-22 58 0 373 11 39 94 20 0 1 596

May-22 65 0 374 10 67 100 15 0 1 632

Jun-22 75 0 343 11 63 112 26 0 1 631

Jul-22 166 0 383 23 45 113 19 1 0 750

Aug-22 90 0 340 17 56 118 15 0 0 636

Sep-22 55 0 344 12 51 110 15 1 1 589

Oct-22 83 0 336 16 54 103 20 0 0 612

Nov-22 94 0 359 31 57 100 23 0 1 665

Dec-22 51 0 370 16 47 115 18 0 0 617

TOTAL 910 2 4237 215 608 1244 238 2 12 7468

2023 Summary By Station

2023 Total Summary By Apparatus



2023  Admin Totals  (Chief, BC, Training) 

Month Fire 100

Reture/ 

Explosion 

200

EMS/ 

Rescue 

300

Hazardous 

Condition 

400

Service 

Call 500

Good 

Intent 

600

False 

Call 700

Severe 

Weather 

800

Other              

900

Shift 

Totals 

Jan-22 9 0 15 3 4 7 1 0 0 39

Feb-22 20 0 23 4 0 8 1 0 0 56

Mar-22 9 0 14 2 1 13 2 0 0 41

Apr-22 11 0 15 2 1 4 1 0 0 34

May-22 16 0 17 1 2 11 0 0 0 47

Jun-22 12 1 22 1 4 14 0 0 0 54

Jul-22 39 0 30 3 1 13 2 0 0 88

Aug-22 21 0 16 3 3 16 0 0 0 59

Sep-22 16 0 18 2 2 13 2 0 0 53

Oct-22 16 0 22 3 4 15 0 0 0 60

Nov-22 22 0 18 1 2 10 1 0 0 54

Dec-22 9 0 19 0 1 10 0 0 0 39

TOTAL 200 1 229 25 25 134 10 0 0 624

December Monthly Station Response Summary by Station and Shift

Report Date Range: December 1 - December 31, 2023

Fire 100

Rupture/ 

Explosion 

200

EMS/ 

Rescue 

300

Hazardous 

Condition 

400

Service 

Call 500

Good 

Intent 

600

False 

Call 700

Severe 

Weather 

800

Other          

900

Shift 

Totals 

Station 21 (Airport)

Shift A 2 0 27 0 2 4 0 0 0 35

Shift B 2 0 30 1 0 4 1 0 0 38

Shift C 2 0 23 2 5 8 3 0 0 43

Total 6 0 80 3 7 16 4 0 0 116

Station 22 (Empire) 

Shift A 2 0 16 0 0 2 3 0 0 23

Shift B 2 0 24 0 0 3 0 0 0 29

Shift C 0 0 13 1 1 1 2 0 0 18

Total 4 0 53 1 1 6 5 0 0 70

Station 23 (Fruityard) 

Shift A 0 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 0 5

Shift B 0 0 8 0 1 0 0 0 0 9

Shift C 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4



Total 0 0 16 0 1 1 0 0 0 18

Station 24 (Waterford) 

Shift A 0 0 26 1 5 0 0 0 0 32

Shift B 1 0 24 0 2 4 4 0 0 35

Shift C 0 0 23 0 5 5 0 0 0 33

Total 1 0 73 1 12 9 4 0 0 100

Station 25 (La Grange) 

Shift A 2 0 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 6

Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Shift C 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Total 2 0 4 0 1 4 0 0 0 11

Station 26 (Riverbank) 

Shift A 1 0 31 0 6 19 0 0 0 57

Shift B 4 0 25 3 6 3 1 0 0 42

Shift C 0 0 38 1 3 11 1 0 0 54

Total 5 0 94 4 15 33 2 0 0 153

District Totals 

18 0 320 9 37 69 15 0 0 468

December Monthly Apparatus Response Summary by Station and Shift

Report Date Range: December 1 -  December 31, 2023

Fire 100

Rupture/ 

Explosion 

200

EMS/ 

Rescue 

300

Hazardous 

Condition 

400

Service 

Call 500

Good 

Intent 

600

False 

Call 700

Severe 

Weather 

800

Other          

900

Shift 

Totals 

Station 21 (Airport)

Shift A 7 0 35 1 4 6 0 0 0 53

Shift B 5 0 34 1 0 8 2 0 0 50

Shift C 6 0 29 3 5 14 3 0 0 60

Total 18 0 98 5 9 28 5 0 0 163

Station 22 (Empire) 

Shift A 3 0 23 2 2 4 4 0 0 38

Shift B 4 0 25 1 1 7 0 0 0 38

Shift C 5 0 15 3 2 9 2 0 0 36

Total 12 0 63 6 5 20 6 0 0 112



Station 23 (Fruit Yard)

Shift A 3 0 11 0 2 3 0 0 0 19

Shift B 3 0 14 0 1 2 0 0 0 20

Shift C 4 0 17 0 1 3 0 0 0 25

Total 10 0 42 0 4 8 0 0 0 64

Station 24 (Waterford) 

Shift A 2 0 25 1 5 1 0 0 0 34

Shift B 1 0 23 0 2 6 4 0 0 36

Shift C 1 0 22 0 5 7 0 0 0 35

Total 4 0 70 1 12 14 4 0 0 105

Station 26 (Riverbank) 

Shift A 2 0 31 0 7 22 0 0 0 62

Shift B 3 0 27 3 7 6 2 0 0 48

Shift C 2 0 39 1 3 17 1 0 0 63

Total 7 0 97 4 17 45 3 0 0 173

District Totals

51 0 370 16 47 115 18 0 0 617

December Monthly Admin Response Summary by Shift

Report Date Range: December 1 - December 31, 2023

Fire 100

Reture/ 

Explosion 

200

EMS/ 

Rescue 

300

Hazardous 

Condition 

400

Service 

Call 500

Good 

Intent 

600

False 

Call 700

Severe 

Weather 

800

Other    

900

Shift 

Totals 

Battalion 2

Shift A 1 0 9 0 1 2 0 0 0 13

Shift B 4 0 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 9

Shift C 4 0 8 0 0 5 0 0 0 17

Total 9 0 19 0 1 10 0 0 0 39

Battalion 202

Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Battalion 204

Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training 3

Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training 4

Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Prevention 2

Shift A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift B 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Shift C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

District Total

9 0 19 0 1 10 0 0 0 39



  

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT  

 

TO:   President Goulding and Members of the Board of Directors 

 

FROM: Captain Tim Johnson, Training Officer 

 

SUBJECT: December Training Report 

 

DATE: January 3, 2024 

 

Completed Training for November 

•Total Hours of Training – 1,908 hours. 

 

November Training  

•MST Joint Academy 2023-02 started on November 21st with 22 new hires. SCFPD has four 

probationary firefighters participating in the academy. Topics covered in November: 

 •HR Intake, Department and Academy Orientation 

 •Personal Protective Equipment and SCBA didactic and manipulative skills training 

 •Basic Engine Company operations 

 •Conventional Forcible Entry  

•Quarterly EMS Training was completed  

•MST Personnel completed Battalion Drills. The focus was high rise operations. 

•SCFPD Personnel continued in-service training on the RAM XD Rapid Attack Portable Monitor 

•Training Hours Summary: 

•Engine Company Training: 220 hours 

Engine Company Training topics included but were not limited to hose 

evolutions, advanced/conventional forcible entry, and ladder evolutions. 

•Driver’s Training:  52 hours 

•Policy and Procedure Review: 126 hours 

•EMS: 76 hours 

•Paramedic Program (AFG Medic Program): 206 hours 

•Tech Rescue: 31 hours 

•Orange and Blue Sheet Reviews: 65 hours 

•Annual Mandated Training: 163 hours 

 

Completed Training for December 

•Total Hours of Training – 1,798 hours. 

 

December Training  

• Academy 2023-02 completed weeks three through six. The academy covered the following 

topics during December.  

 

Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District 

3324 Topeka Street 

Riverbank, CA 95367 

Phone: (209) 869-7470 ∙ Fax: (209) 869-7475 

www.scfpd.us  

http://www.scfpd.us/


  

 

 •Advanced Engine Company Operations: 1.75inch and 2.5inch hose operations 

 •Water supply, R.A.M, Master Stream, and High-Rise Operations  

 •Building Construction 

 •Ground Lader Operations 

 •Ventilation and Roof Operations  

•Personnel worked on wrapping up their annual mandated training requirements.  

•Several Orange and Blue Sheets were posted in November and December. 

•Training Hours Summary: 

•Engine Company Training: 233hours 

Engine Company Training topics included but were not limited to hose 

evolutions, advanced/conventional forcible entry, and ladder evolutions. 

•Driver’s Training:  81 hours 

•EMS: 64 hours 

•Paramedic Program (AFG Medic Program): 101 hours 

•Vehicle Extrication: 63 hours 

•Orange and Blue Sheet Reviews: 58 hours 

•Annual Mandated Training: 87 hours 

 

January Training  

•SCFPD personnel will complete Fire Prevention Business Inspection refresher training.  

•Academy 2023-01 continues to prepare for their upcoming 10-month test.  

•MST Battalion Chiefs will attend Designated Infections Control Officer (DICO) course 

beginning January 11th.  

 

Year End Summary 

•SCFPD personnel recorded more than 19,000 hours of on-line and hands-on training for 2023. 

•Hands on quarterly EMS training was provided through the fire training division resulting in 

1,448 hours of EMS CEs being issued to MST personnel. 

 

Training Hours by Subject 

•Academy – 3,211 •Hose Operations – 946 

•Battalion Drills - 311 •Ground Ladder – 417 

•Building Construction – 95  •AFG Paramedic Training – 1,323 

•Aerial Ladder/Truck/Quint Training – 275 •Pre/Post Incident Planning – 400 

•Driver Training – 1,075 •Policy & Procedure Review – 1,113 

•Pumping Operations – 215 •Portable Radio – 121 

•Emergency Operations – 651 •Wildland Training – 591 

•EMS Training CE/Non-CE – 1,245 •SCBA – 70 

•Fire Prevention – 234 •Technical Rescue – 694 

•Fire Suppression – 748 •Vehicle Extrication - 255 

•Firefighter Survival – 94  

 

 


	1 Agenda Final- 1.18.24.pdf (p.1-4)
	9.A December 2023 Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.5-9)
	9.B Monthly Check Register December.pdf (p.10-12)
	9.C Bank Act vs Cash Act December.pdf (p.13)
	9.C Budget vs Actual December.pdf (p.14-21)
	9.C Summary Budget vs Actual December.pdf (p.22)
	12.A.1 Staff Report- Board Clerk Appointment.pdf (p.23)
	12.A.2 Resolution 24-01 Board Clerk Appointment.pdf (p.24)
	12.B Staff Report Nomination & Election of Board Officers 2024.pdf (p.25-26)
	12.C Staff Report- Election of 2024 Committee Members and Reps UTD.pdf (p.27-30)
	12.D.1 Staff Report - Dr. Roland.pdf (p.31)
	12.D.2 Roland 2023 Agreement Contract.pdf (p.32-34)
	12.E Staff Report- Mid-Year Budget 2023-2024.pdf (p.35-41)
	12.F.1 Staff Report - Deputy Chief Contract.pdf (p.42)
	12.F.2 Deputy Chief Bray Contract 2024.pdf (p.43-52)
	13.2.A Copy of Monthly RMS Board Report Dec 2023.pdf (p.53-57)
	13.2.B Staff Reports - 2023 December Training Report.pdf (p.58-59)

